
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

    

  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                          
 

AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 

 Tuesday, August 2, 2016 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 
   9:00 AM Call to Order  

   Approval of Minutes 

 June 26, 2016 Board Meeting 

 

   Review Agenda 

 

Consent Agenda  

      

Commissioners 

a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 107   

Juvenile  

b. Agreement with Pasco High School for Probation Counselor  

c. Agreement with Chiawana High School for Probation Counselor  

Office of Public Defense 

d. Public Defense Services Agreement w/D Orr for Adult Drug Court  

e. Termination of Juvenile Public Defense Contract w/P Peterson  

f. Amended Contract w/M Trombley for Superior Court Public Defense Services   

Public Works  

g. Purchase Authorization for Tires from Les Schwab Tire Center  

h. Purchase Authorization from Envirotech Services for Deicer  

Sheriff  

i. Amended Agreement w/Softcode for Software License and Maintenance  

j. Interlocal Agreement for Special Investigations Unit to Investigate Officer Incidents  

Superior Court  

k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 123    

Sustainable Development 
l. Termination of Amended & Restated Debt Participation Agreement for Jail & District Court 

Expansion of 2001  

 

Scheduled Business 

 

Electronic Security Retrofit – RFP Update ~ D Waggoner  

 

Fairgrounds Building 2 & 3 Plaza ~ F Bowen  

 
Unscheduled Visitors 

   Other Business   
 

 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on the highlighted area. 



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 

August 2, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

   Executive Session  

   Pending Litigation ~ R Brown  

 

 

 10:30 AM  Columbia Irrigation District Interviews  

   

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us


 - 1 - 

MINUTES 

 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, July 26, 2016, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

Present: Chairman Shon Small 

  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 

  Commissioner James Beaver 

  County Administrator David Sparks   

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 

Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; County 

Engineer Matt Rasmussen; Assistant County Engineer Robert Blain; Planning Manager Mike 

Shuttleworth; DPA Ryan Brown; Auditor Brenda Chilton; Clerk Josie Delvin; District Court 

Administrator Jacki Lahtinen; Financial Analyst Paul Schut; DPA Steve Hallstrom; Personnel 

Manager Lexi Wingfield; Public Services Administrator Fred Bowen; District Court Judge Terry 

Tanner; Human Services Manager Kyle Sullivan.   

 

Approval of Minutes 

 

The Minutes of July 19, 2016 were approved. 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “l”.  

Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 

 

Facilities 

a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110  

Fairgrounds 

b. Contract w/Apollo Sheet Metal, Inc. for Installation of Lennox Unit 

c. Contract w/Big D’s Construction of Tri-Cities, Inc. for Installation of Water Supply System 

Human Services 

d. Amendment D w/WA State Dept of Commerce, Community Services & Housing Division 

e. Termination Letter for Greater Columbia Behavioral Health Contracts 

Juvenile 

f. Contract w/J Blanco for Functional Family Therapy  

g. Payment Authorization to Tyco SimplexGrinnell System for Fire Alarm Monitoring  

Public Safety  
h. Agreement w/Safe Harbor Crisis Nursery for My Friends Place for Overnight Youth 

Shelter 



 - 2 - 

Public Works 

i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500    

Sheriff 

j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 125 

k. Agreement w/City of Kennewick for Use of Kennewick Firearms Range Facility 

l. Contract Extension w/Energy Northwest for Law Enforcement Services 

 

Public Hearing - Supplemental Appropriation 

 

Loretta Smith Kelty announced the public hearing on the supplemental appropriation was 

cancelled and they would come back at a later date and re-advertise.   

 

Legal Financial Obligation (LFO) Impact Update 

 

Ms. Smith Kelty said she had been working with a team to update the Board on the financial 

impacts of the LFO docket.  She gave a Powerpoint presentation and discussed the following: 

 

 Years 2013-2016 – Current Expense Revenue Categories  

 Variance from 2015 to 2016 – forecasting a 19% decrease (to be down by the end of 2016 

by approximately $785,000) 

 

District Court Administrator Jacki Lahtinen discussed the District Court Caseload and highlighted 

the following: 

 

 Monthly civil infraction penalties were way down; partly due to the LFO’s (however, if 

they decided not to pay their LFO’s since they would not go to jail, they were also not 

paying their infractions) 

 Additionally, infraction tickets were down 500 in one month 

 Criminal - seeing a decrease in criminal case filings as well (2016 had a pretty good 

decrease every month) 

 

Commissioner Delvin asked about whether the new officers were on board yet and Andy Miller 

via/videoconference stated that none of the cities had been able to fill the officer positions with the 

new 3/10 money.   

 

Undersheriff Jerry Hatcher via/videoconference said they originally had hoped to be done filling 

the positions by September but were now pushing it back to February (and were not optimistic 

about hiring by then with the candidates that were applying).  He said that hiring new officers was 

a pretty lengthy process. 

 

Ms. Smith Kelty indicated the other funds (Crime Victim, Law Library, and Judicial Stable Trust) 

were down and they were seeing hits across the board, not just with Current Expense.   

 

 Superior Court revenue – same situation 

 



 - 3 - 

Clerk Josie Delvin said there was a national trend and it was coming from a ruling down from the 

Courts that the judges had to make a decision at the time of sentencing if the defendant had the 

future ability to pay certain fees; it also affected the ability for the Clerk to collect fees.   

 

 Average Jail Population 

 

Undersheriff Jerry Hatcher and Linda Ivey reviewed the average jail population from 2015-2016.  

Mr. Hatcher said they anticipated a drop in population with the LFO’s (about 75) and were trying 

to mitigate those effects.  He said they were constantly evaluating staffing levels to meet current 

population trends which were always fluctuating; there was $761,000 not paid out in salaries due 

to open positions.  He said he believed they were close to plateauing and were trying to move 

staffing levels and contract housing was up to help mitigate the drop in local population.   

 

He added that with law enforcement the types of cases they were seeing were more complex and 

while the LFO cases went down, they continued to see an increase in mental health cases. 

 

Commissioner Delvin said he wanted to know about the effects of the LFO in advance of the 

budget preparation so the budget submittals would reflect changes in revenue.  He said if 

everything was down, he didn’t see making up the difference from the general fund and the 

departments would need to look at their personnel staffing.   

 

Commissioner Beaver said he agreed that if revenues were down, they needed to look at 

alternatives.  The cities were aggressively pursuing alternatives to incarceration and the county 

needed to look to the future and how to address this if the money was not there.  He said he was 

agreeable to a workshop on the issue, if needed.   

 

Chairman Small said it was good information to see what had been happening the last six months 

and agreed they needed to start making adjustments.   

 

Ms. Delvin commented that the Clerk was authorized to decide whether to go outside or utilize in 

house staff for the collections (and she was choosing to stay in house).  However, she was also 

authorized to use a wage assignment without any further notices and she would be looking to 

utilize that and go aggressively after those defendants that had jobs.   

 

Road Construction Closure  

 

County Engineer Matt Rasmussen and Cary Roe, City of Kennewick updated the Board on the 

upcoming road closures during construction of a new middle school.  The update included 

closures, connections and timeframes and impacts to Clodfelter Road area.   

 

Old Engineering Building - Renovation 

 

Fred Bowen said the estimated costs for modernization of the entire facility was between $1.5 

million to $1.55 million. Additionally, the Planning Annex and parking lots appraised value was 

estimated at $224,000 offsetting some of the costs.  Mr. Bowen recommended the Board approve 



 - 4 - 

entering into a contract with CKJT Architects for the development of the construction plans and 

specifications for the renovation of the Old Engineering Building located behind the Courthouse.   

 

Commissioner Delvin asked whether Prosser WSU should be included.  Mr. Bowen said there was 

plenty of room to include WSU into the renovated building and recommended the County keep 

the WSU building for storage.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the Public Services Administrator to proceed 

with a Contract with CKJT for the development of construction plans and specifications for the 

renovation of the Old Engineering Building.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the 

motion carried.   

 

Quarterly Financial Update 

 

Paul Schut updated the Board on the quarterly financial status as of June 30, 2016 as follows: 

 

 Highlights  

o 75% through the biennium 

o Revenues at 76.41% (75.80% Amortized); up 20% in retail sales tax – mainly due 

to construction 

o Expenditures at 68.21% 

 

Other Business 

 

MATRICS Agreement 

 

Commissioner Delvin said the Board signed the MATRICS agreement in 2015 but the cities had 

not ever signed it and they had not had a MATRICS meeting in some time.  Additionally, he said 

that Franklin County and Pasco were still trying to figure out what they wanted to do.  He 

recommended the Board sign a resolution rescinding that agreement and Ms. McKenzie said she 

would prepare the resolution for the Board’s signature.   

 

Mental Health Court  

 

Commissioner Delvin said he talked with Tara Symons and Judge Butler about Mental Health 

Court and that temporary housing was a big issue.  He said they discussed drafting a letter to 

Providence to consider building such a facility instead of placing them in the ER beds and maybe 

the County could partner (using Human Services funds). 

 

The Board agreed to further consider the issue.   

 

Judge Tanner (from the audience) said he agreed the biggest issue for mental health clients was 

housing.   

 

  



 - 5 - 

ARC – Advisory Committee for Accessible Communities Act 

 

Commissioner Delvin asked the Board if it was agreeable to establishing the advisory committee 

as previously requested by ARC.  The Board agreed and Commissioner Delvin said he would have 

someone from ARC contact the County.   

 

The Board recessed at 10:12 a.m. for approximately five minutes, reconvening at 10:20 a.m.   

 

Executive Session – Pending Litigation 

 

The Board went into executive session at 10:20 a.m. for approximately 30 minutes with DPA Ryan 

Brown to discuss pending litigation.  Also present were special counsel Suzanne Kelly Michael, 

Susan Looker (Risk Pool), David Sparks, Loretta Smith Kelty, Cami McKenzie, Steve Hallstrom, 

and Lexi Wingfield.  The Board came out at 10:45 a.m.  Mr. Brown said the Board discussed 

pending litigation and took no action.   

 

Vouchers 

 

Check Date: 07/22/2016 

 

Transfers #: 07221601-07221607 

Total all funds:  $218,649.41 

 

Warrant #: 142677-142819 

Total all funds: $2,112,011.69 

 

Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 

 

Resolutions 

 

2016-573: Termination Letter for Greater Columbia Behavioral Health Contracts 

2016-574: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110  

2016-575: Contract w/Apollo Sheet Metal, Inc. for Installation of Lennox Unit 

2016-576: Contract w/Big D’s Construction of Tri-Cities, Inc. for Installation of Water Supply 

System 

2016-577: Amendment D w/WA State Dept of Commerce, Community Services & Housing 

Division 

2016-578: Contract w/J Blanco for Functional Family Therapy  

2016-579: Payment Authorization to Tyco SimplexGrinnell System for Fire Alarm 

Monitoring  

2016-580: Agreement w/Safe Harbor Crisis Nursery for My Friends Place for Overnight 

Youth Shelter 

2016-581: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500    

2016-582: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 125 

2016-583: Agreement w/City of Kennewick for Use of Kennewick Firearms Range Facility 

2016-584: Contract Extension w/Energy Northwest for Law Enforcement Services 



 - 6 - 

 

 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:45 

a.m.   

 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 

 



Dated this day of August , 2016

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, M Flores Flores

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 
COMMISSIONERS FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 107.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds 
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 107



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FR   107 TRANSFER TO  107

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

511.200 3201 Vehicle Fuel $1,000 511.600 4894 ER & R Repair & Maintenance $1,000

TOTAL $1,000 TOTAL $1,000

Explanation:

Prepared by: Marilu Flores Date:  22-Jul-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Transfer needed to pay estimated ER & R car repairs & maintenance for remainder of 2016

Current Expense 

Commissioners

107

0000-101



WEH
Text Box
b. Agreement with Pasco High School for Probation Counselor

























WEH
Text Box
c. Agreement with Chiawana High School for Probation Counselor

























WEH
Text Box
d. Public Defense Services Agreement w/D Orr for Adult Drug Court













































WEH
Text Box
e. Termination of Juvenile Public Defense Contract w/P Peterson







WEH
Text Box
f. Amended Contract w/M Trombley for Superior Court Public Defense Services







WEH
Text Box
g. Purchase Authorization for Tires from Les Schwab Tire Center



WEH
Text Box
h. Purchase Authorization from Envirotech Services for Deicer



































 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 8/2/16 
Subject: Resolution 2013-705 

Amendment  
Prepared by: L. Small  
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           __X__  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/SUMMARY 
 
The Benton County Sheriff’s Office Civil Division has been utilizing SoftCode, Inc., Marlborough, 
Massachusetts for a number of years, which provides software and maintenance services for the use of 
tracking all information and documentation for services such as small claims, child custody, summons, 
subpoenas, domestic violence protection orders, court orders, and etc. 
 
Per Resolution 2013-705 the Benton County Commissioners entered into two agreements with SoftCode, 
Inc. for the Perpetual Software License Agreement (for record signature only) and the Software 
Maintenance Agreement in the amount of $2,000 per year.  
 
The Benton County Sheriff’s Office received a letter dated August 29, 2014 announcing that Softcode, Inc. 
became part of Tyler Technologies. 
 
Section 3 of the Software Maintenance Agreement states that the maintenance shall automatically renew 
annually on the renewal date for an additional one (1) year term under the then current fees. 
 
The 2016 annual renewal fee has increase to $2,060.00 plus WSST and the Sheriff’ Office recommends 
amending Resolution 2013-705 to reflect this change and have the Board authorize any future fee 
changes. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution amending Resolution 2013-705 to reflect the 2016 renewal annual 
software maintenance fee to $2,060.00 plus WSST and authorize any changes to future annual renewal 
fees.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Annual amount of $2,060 for customer support and updates.  
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
i. Amended Agreement w/Softcode for Software License and Maintenance



Orig: Sheriff’s Office 
Cc: Auditor’s Office; S. Araiza; Tyler Technologies   

Prepared by: L. Small 

 RESOLUTION 
 BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AMENDING RESOLUTION 2013-705 AUTHORIZING THE SOFTWARE 
LICENSE AGREEMENT AND SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
BENTON COUNTY AND SOFTCODE FOR THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
CIVIL DIVISION 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2013-705 the Benton County Commissioners entered into two agreements 
with SoftCode, Inc. for the Perpetual Software License Agreement (for record signature only) and the 
Software Maintenance Agreement in the amount of $2,000 per year for the Civil Division in the Benton 
County Sheriff’s Office; and  
 
WHEREAS, said software and maintenance services provides services for the use of tracking all 
information and documentation for small claims, child custody, summons, subpoenas, domestic violence 
protection orders, court orders, and etc.; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Sheriff’s Office received a letter dated August 29, 2014 announcing that 
Softcode, Inc. became part of Tyler Technologies; and  
 
WHEREAS, Section 3 of the  Software Maintenance Agreement states that the maintenance shall 
automatically renew annually on the renewal date for an additional one (1) year term under the then current 
fees; and  
 
WHEREAS, the annual renewal fee has increase to $2,060.00 plus WSST and the Sheriff’ Office 
recommends amending Resolution 2013-705 to reflect this change and have the Board authorize any 
changes to future annual maintenance renewal fees; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby concurs with amending 
Resolution 2013-705 to reflect the 2016 annual software maintenance renewal fee change to $2,060.00 plus 
WSST and approve any changes to future maintenance renewal fees payable to Tyler Technologies. 
 
 
Dated this ___________________ day of ___________________, 2016 
 
                                 ________________________                
 Chairman of the Board 
  
 
                                   ________________________                
 Member 
 
 
                                   ________________________                
 Member 

   
Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

  of Benton County, Washington. 
Attest............................................................. 
                   Clerk of the Board 



AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: August 2, 2016   
Subject: Interlocal Agreement 

for Special 
Investigations Unit    

Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by:  Ryan Brown  

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract ___ _  
Pass Resolution  __X__ 
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion _____  
Other  _____ 

Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____ 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 

Per Resolution 11-147 dated February 28, 2011, the Board of Benton County Commissioners entered into an 
Interlocal Agreement for Special Investigation Unit (SIU) with local law enforcement agencies to help facilitate 
investigations of incidents involving law enforcement officers that result in grievous or fatal injury to another person 
or to an officer resulting from acts of another person investigate officer involved incidents 

Whereas the local law enforcement agencies would like to update the Interlocal Agreement and include other law 
enforcement agencies who would like to participate.  

The SIU is a multijurisdictional team consisting of members from some or all of the parties hereto and who are 
selected and shall operate in accordance with the Special Investigations Unit Protocol, attached as Exhibit A to and 
referenced in the Interlocal Agreement.  

Bringing to the Commissioners’ attention, Section 9 of the attached Interlocal Agreement, like the 2011 agreement, 
assigns liability for damages other than property damages to the agency employing the SIU officer(s) whose actions 
or inactions are in question.   This is in contrast to other Interlocal Agreements, like our SWAT Agreements, where 
the agency requesting assistance assumes liability for the actions of those officers from other jurisdictions that are 
providing assistance.  

The City of Kennewick has asked that Benton County start the signature process and they will provide us a fully 
executed copy for our records.   

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the attached Resolution and Interlocal Agreement authorizing the Benton County Sheriff’s signature on the 
attached agreement.   

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

Ryan Brown  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Each agency shall be responsible for their employees’ wages and associated employee costs of the SIU and any 
other costs further outlined in Section 5 of the SIU Protocol. 

MOTION 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
j. Interlocal Agreement for Special Investigations Unit to Investigate Officer Incidents



Orig: Sheriff’s Office  
Auditor; S. Araiza; Franklin Co; Walla Walla Co; Municipalities of Kennewick, Richland, W. Richland, Prosser,  
Pasco, Connell, Walla Walla, WSP, WA Dept. of Fish & Wildlife    L. Small 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF TO SIGN 
THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR SPECIAL INVESTIGATIONS UNIT TO 
INVESTIGATE OFFICER INVOLVED INCIDENTS; RESCINDING RESOLUTION 
11-147 
 
WHEREAS, as per Resolution 11-147 dated February 28, 2011, the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners entered into an Interlocal Agreement for Special Investigation Unit (SIU) with 
local law enforcement agencies to help facilitate investigations of incidents involving law 
enforcement officers that result in grievous or fatal injury to another person or to an officer 
resulting from acts of another person investigate officer involved incidents; and  
 
WHEREAS, Benton, Franklin, and Walla Walla Counties, and the municipalities of 
Kennewick, Richland, West Richland, Prosser, Pasco, Connell, Walla Walla, Washington State 
Patrol, and Washington State Department Of Fish And Wildlife (parties) desire to update the 
SIU Interlocal Agreement and include other law enforcement agencies who would like to 
participate; and   
 
WHEREAS, the SIU is a multijurisdictional team consisting of members from some or all of 
the parties hereto and who are selected and shall operate in accordance with the Special 
Investigations Unit Protocol, attached as Exhibit A and incorporated by reference “SIU 
Protocol” in the attached Interlocal Agreement; and  
 
WHEREAS, each agency shall be responsible for their employees’ wages and associated 
employee costs of the SIU and any other costs further outlined in Section 5 of the SIU Protocol; 
NOW, THEREFORE    
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, 
Washington hereby concurs with the attached Interlocal Agreement and authorizes the Benton 
County Sheriff to sign the Interlocal Agreement between Benton, Franklin, and Walla Walla 
Counties, and the municipalities of Kennewick, Richland, West Richland, Prosser, Pasco, 
Connell, Walla Walla, Washington State Patrol, and Washington State Department Of Fish 
And Wildlife for Special Investigations Unit (SIU) to investigate officer involved incidents; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the term of the Agreement shall commence upon signature 
of all parties and continue through December 1, 2018 and shall automatically extend for 
consecutive one (1) year terms, unless terminated pursuant to the terms of the agreement; and  
 
 
 



Orig: Sheriff’s Office  
Auditor; S. Araiza; Franklin Co; Walla Walla Co; Municipalities of Kennewick, Richland, W. Richland, Prosser,  
Pasco, Connell, Walla Walla, WSP, WA Dept. of Fish & Wildlife    L. Small 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the attached Interlocal Agreement supersedes all prior 
negotiations, agreements and understandings with respect thereto including but not limited to 
the SIU Interlocal Agreement executed by several of the parties in early 2011; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Benton County Resolution 11-147 is hereby rescinded.  
 
 
Dated this ________ day of ________________, 2016  

 
 
 
 

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

                
Member 

 
Attest:______________________________ 

          Clerk of the Board      Constituting the Board of County  
Commissioners of Benton County, Washington 

                   
 
 
 
  



 

  1

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR 
SPECIAL INVESTIGATIONS UNIT TO INVESTIGATE 

OFFICER INVOLVED INCIDENTS 
 
 THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT is effective upon the date 
executed by all parties and its recording with the Benton County 
Auditor.  In consideration of the mutual covenants below, the 
parties agree as follows: 
 
 1. PARTIES.  The parties to this Agreement are Benton, 
Franklin and Walla Walla counties, political subdivisions of the 
State of Washington, the municipalities of Kennewick, Richland, 
West Richland, Prosser, Pasco, Connell, Walla Walla, the 
Washington State Patrol and the Washington State Department of 
Fish and Wildlife, an agency of the State of Washington. 
 
 2. AUTHORITY.  This Agreement is entered into pursuant to 
Chapter 10.93 (Washington Mutual Aid Peace Officers Powers Act) 
and Chapter 39.34 (Interlocal Cooperation Act) of the Revised 
Code of Washington. 
 
 3. PURPOSE.  The parties hereto desire to establish a 
Special Investigations Unit consisting of law enforcement 
officers from the various local law enforcement agencies to help 
facilitate orderly, thorough and objective investigations of 
incidents involving law enforcement officers that result in 
grievous or fatal injury to another person or to an officer 
resulting from acts of another person. Any party may request 
assistance from SIU considering the complexity of an 
investigation that requires additional resources.   
 
 4. FORMATION. There is hereby created a multi-
jurisdictional team to be known as the "SPECIAL INVESTIGATIONS 
UNIT" ("SIU"), the members of which shall be officers from some 
or all of the parties hereto and who shall be selected and shall 
operate in accordance with the Special Investigations Unit 
Protocol, attached as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by 
reference (“SIU Protocol”). 
 
 5. DURATION AND TERMINATION.  The term of this Agreement 
shall be through December 1, 2018.  This Agreement shall 
automatically extend for consecutive one (1) year terms, unless 
terminated pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 
 



 

  2

 A party may terminate this Agreement or, alternatively, 
withdraw its participation in SIU by providing written notice to 
the chief law enforcement officer for each party of its intent 
to terminate or withdraw from this Agreement.  A notice of 
termination or withdrawal shall become effective upon the latter 
of:  a) ninety (90) days after service of the notice on the 
chief law enforcement officers for all parties; or b) at the 
conclusion of any SIU investigation that is pending on the date 
specified by (a) above. 
 
 6. GOVERNANCE.  SIU shall be governed by the SIU Protocol 
attached hereto and incorporated by reference.  The SIU Protocol 
may be amended from time to time by written approval of the 
Sheriffs and Chiefs for all parties to this Agreement.  Upon 
such amendment, the amended SIU Protocol will be provided to 
each Sheriff and Chief and shall supercede any prior versions of 
that document. 
 
 7. ASSIGNMENT OF OFFICERS.  The parties agree to 
cooperate with respect to the assigning of officers to the SIU 
and that the appointment of SIU officers will be in accordance 
with the SIU Protocol. 
 
 8. REQUEST FOR SIU ASSISTANCE.  As stated in the SIU 
Protocol, departments are under no obligation to request the 
assistance of SIU.  If the assistance of the SIU is requested, 
the SIU shall be activated and will operate pursuant to the SIU 
Protocol.  
 
 9. ALLOCATION OF LIABILITY/INDEMNIFICATION.  Each of the 
parties agrees that any liability or claim for property damages 
arising out of the actions or inactions of an officer that has 
been appointed to the SIU and acting within the course and scope 
of the officer's duties as a member of the SIU shall be the 
responsibility of the party that requests SIU assistance.  Each 
of the parties agrees that any other liability or claim arising 
out of the actions or inactions of an officer that has been 
appointed to the SIU and acting within the course and scope of 
the officer's duties as a member of the SIU shall be the 
responsibility of the agency employing the SIU officer(s) whose 
actions or inactions are in question.  These provisions are 
intended to expressly allocate liability by written agreement as 
authorized by RCW 10.93.040.  These provisions are not intended 
to require indemnification or payment by any party of that 
portion of any judgment against any members of the SIU team or 



 

  3

party hereto based on intentional wrongful conduct that is 
outside the scope of employment of any members of the SIU or of 
that portion of any judgment for punitive damages against a SIU 
team member or party to this Agreement.  Payment of punitive 
damages, if any, shall be the sole responsibility of any 
individual against whom said judgment is rendered unless his or 
her employer elects to make said payment voluntarily. 
 
 In the event that a claim or lawsuit is brought against a 
party or its employee(s) for actions arising out of their 
conduct in the operation of the SIU, such party shall promptly 
notify all other parties in writing that said claim or lawsuit 
has been filed or commenced. 
 
 10. COMPLETE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement and the exhibit 
attached hereto contain the entire agreement of the parties with 
respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.  Any oral or 
written representations or understandings not incorporated in 
this Agreement are specifically excluded.  This Agreement 
supersedes all prior negotiations, agreements and understandings 
with respect thereto including but not limited to the SIU 
interlocal agreement executed by several of the parties in early 
2011. This Agreement may only be amended by a written document 
duly executed by all parties. 
 
 11. INTERLOCAL COOPERATION ACT PROVISIONS.  No special 
budget or funds are anticipated nor created to implement this 
Agreement.  It is not intended that a separate legal entity be 
established to conduct this cooperative undertaking, nor is the 
acquiring, holding, or disposing of real or personal property 
contemplated other than as specifically provided within the 
terms of this Agreement.  The Chief of Police for the City of 
Richland or his or her designee shall be the Administrator of 
this Interlocal Agreement. 
 
 12. FILING WITH AUDITOR.  This Agreement shall be filed 
with the Benton County Auditor.  
 
 13. AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES.  By signing below, the signor 
certifies that he or she has the authority to sign this 
Agreement on behalf of the party, and the party agrees to the 
terms of this Agreement. 
 
 
 
 





 

  5

Date: _______________________ 
 
Attest: _________________________ 
By:______________________________ 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Kintzley, City Attorney 
 
CITY OF WEST RICHLAND 
 
________________________________ 
Brian McElroy, Chief of Police 
Date: _______________________ 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Brent Gerry, Mayor 
Date: _______________________ 
 
 
Attest:  
 
_________________________________ 
By:______________________________ 
 
WASHINGTON STATE PATROL  
 
_________________________________ 
John R. Batiste, Chief of  
Washington State Patrol 
Date: _______________________ 
 
WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF 
FISH AND WILDLIFE  
 
_________________________________ 
Chris Anderson, Chief  
Date: _______________________ 
 
City of Walla Walla  
 
_________________________________ 
Scott Bieber, Chief of Police 
Date: _______________________ 
 
_________________________________ 
Nabiel Shawa, City Manager 

Date: ____________________ 
 
Attest: ________________________ 
By:_____________________________ 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
________________________________ 
Dan Hultgrenn, City Attorney 
 
CITY OF PROSSER 
 
________________________________ 
David Giles, Chief of  
Police 
Date: ___________________ 
 
_______________________________ 
Dave Stockdale, City Administrator 
Date: ____________________ 
 
 
Attest:  
 
_______________________________ 
By:____________________________ 
 
Walla Walla County Sheriff’s 
Office 
 
_________________________________ 
John A Turner, Sheriff  
Date: ____________________ 
 
_________________________________ 
James L Nagle, Walla Walla County 
Prosecutor 
Date: ____________________ 
 



 

  6

Date: _______________________ 
 
Attest: _________________________ 
By:______________________________ 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
_________________________________ 
Tim Donaldson, City Attorney 
 

  



 
 

SPECIAL INVESTIGATIONS UNIT

Member Agencies: 
  Benton County Sheriff’s Office       Franklin County Sheriff’s Office 
  Kennewick Police Department       Pasco Police Department 
  Richland Police Department      Washington State Patrol 
  West Richland Police Department   Connell Police Department 

Prosser Police Department        Benton County Prosecutor 
  Franklin County Prosecutor       Walla Walla County Prosecutor 
        Walla Walla Police Department        Walla Walla County Sheriff’s Office

  Washington State Department of Fish and Wildlife 

Revised May 18, 2016

 

Protocol

 



Special Investigations Unit (SIU) 
Protocol 

[Type text] 
 

Table of Contents 
1.  MISSION AND PURPOSE OF SIU .......................................................................... 3 
2.  GOALS OF SIU ........................................................................................................ 3 
3.  GOVERNANCE ........................................................................................................ 3 
4.  CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW ............................ 3 
5.  COSTS ..................................................................................................................... 4 
6.  DEFINITIONS ........................................................................................................... 4 
7.  UNIT MEMBERS ...................................................................................................... 6 
8.  UNIT COMPOSITION ............................................................................................... 8 
9.  APPOINTMENT/SELECTION OF UNIT MEMBERS ................................................ 8 
10.  CONFIDENTIALITY .............................................................................................. 9 
11.  REMOVAL FROM UNIT ........................................................................................ 9 
12.  UNIT MEMBERS FROM AN EMPLOYER AGENCY ............................................ 9 
13.  TRAINING ............................................................................................................. 9 
14.  SIU RECORDS ................................................................................................... 10 
15.  REQUESTING SIU ASSISTANCE ...................................................................... 10 
16.  ACTIVATION ...................................................................................................... 10 
17.  AUTHORITY ....................................................................................................... 11 
18.  VENUE AGENCY RESPONSIBILITIES .............................................................. 11 
19.  OBTAINING CRITICAL INFORMATION ............................................................ 12 
20.  TURNING OVER CONTROL OF THE CRIME SCENE TO SIU ......................... 12 
21.  SIU GUIDELINES ............................................................................................... 13 
22.  SEIZING AN OFFICER’S WEAPON ................................................................... 13 
23.  RECOGNIZING POTENTIAL TRAUMA ............................................................. 13 
24.  REMOVING OFFICERS FROM THE SCENE ..................................................... 13 
25.  PEER SUPPORT GROUP COUNSELORS ........................................................ 13 
26.  DOCUMENTING THE INVOLVED OFFICER’S CONDITION ............................. 14 
27.  INTERVIEWING LAW ENFORCEMENT EMPLOYEES ..................................... 14 
28.  INTOXICANT TESTING ...................................................................................... 16 
29.  RELIEVING INVOLVED OFFICERS OF DUTY .................................................. 16 
30.  PLANNED POLICE ACTION .............................................................................. 16 
31.  AUTOPSY ........................................................................................................... 16 
32.  KEEPING THE VENUE/EMPLOYER AGENCY INFORMED ............................. 17 
33.  RELEASE OF INFORMATION / PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICER ................ 17 
34.  RELEASE OF THE CRIME SCENE.................................................................... 17 
35.  REFERRAL TO THE COUNTY PROSECUTOR ................................................ 17 
36.  EVIDENCE STORAGE ....................................................................................... 17 
37.  CASE FILES ....................................................................................................... 18 
38.  INCIDENT DEBRIEFING .................................................................................... 18 
39.  ORGANIZATIONAL CHART .............................................................................. 19 



Special Investigations Unit (SIU) 
Protocol 

[Type text] 
 

 
1. MISSION AND PURPOSE OF SIU 
 
The purpose of the Special Investigations Unit (SIU) is to investigate officer-involved incidents 
that occur within Benton, Franklin and Walla Walla Counties which involve great bodily harm or 
death. The SIU will conduct a criminal investigation to develop relevant information to allow a 
determination of the presence or absence of criminal liability on the part of those involved in the 
incident, specifically: 
A. To determine whether the nature and the quality of the involved conduct is prohibited by 

statutes which provide for criminal penalties upon conviction, and 
B. If criminal conduct does exist, determine the identity of the person(s) responsible, and 
C. If criminal conduct does exist, determine the degree of crime(s), the existence of any factual 

or legal defenses to that crime, and the presence or absence of any factors which could 
mitigate or aggravate punishment for that crime. 

 
While SIU does not investigate administrative concerns the Employer Agency may have, it is 
recognized the criminal investigation results are of interest to the Venue and Employer Agencies 
for their internal use. The results of the SIU criminal investigation will be fully available to the 
Venue and Employer Agencies for that purpose unless otherwise prohibited by law. 
 
SIU criminal investigations shall follow the rules of law established by the state and federal 
constitutions, and statutory and case law which apply to criminal investigations. The 
investigation shall be performed in a manner that provides both the appearance and the reality 
of a thorough, fair, complete and professional investigation that is free of conflicts of interest. 

 
2. GOALS OF SIU  
 
A. To perform the criminal investigation of officer-involved incidents likely to result in great 

bodily harm or death. 
B. To promote public trust by conducting professional and consistent multi-jurisdictional 

investigations of officer-involved incidents which involve great bodily harm or death. 
C. To maximize the availability and sharing of the latest technological equipment and 

techniques. 
D. To consolidate and share the skills of the most experienced commanders, supervisors and 

investigators. 
E. To conduct thorough investigations in a timely fashion.  
F. Any party may request assistance from SIU considering the complexity of an investigation in 

their venue that requires additional resources.   
 

 

3. GOVERNANCE 
 
The creation and operation of the Special Investigations Unit (SIU) will be governed by an Inter-
Local Agreement signed by the Chief/Sheriff for participating law enforcement agencies, and 
participating Prosecutors and Coroners. SIU Protocol will identify operational aspects of the 
Unit. 
 

4. CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW 
 



Special Investigations Unit (SIU) 
Protocol 

[Type text] 
 

The Employer Agency shall be responsible for any administrative investigation and/or review of 
officer-involved incidents. The SIU criminal investigation has investigative priority over the 
administrative investigation and/or review. Employer Agency personnel conducting an 
administrative investigation and/or review should not be involved in an SIU investigation, nor will 
they normally be present or engage in SIU interviews with Subject or Witness Officers.  
 
An allowable exception may be if the Involved Officer or Witness Officer requests to provide a 
single, voluntary (non-compelled Garrity) statement, and requests that Employer Agency personnel 
conducting an administrative investigation and/or review be allowed to observe the SIU criminal 
investigation interview. The Administrative Investigator shall be allowed to monitor the interview , 
but shall not be part of the SIU criminal investigative interview. The Administrative Investigator can 
then conduct the administrative interview after the SIU Investigators have completed their criminal 
investigation interview and left the room. 
 
5. COSTS 
 
Each Member Agency shall be responsible for their employees’ wages and associated 
employee costs of the SIU.  
 
Any necessary equipment or other associated investigative costs that are not covered by the 
shared resources of the Member Agencies shall be the responsibility of the Venue Agency upon 
the approval of the Venue Agency Chief/Sheriff. This includes potential costs for a private 
company to transcribe SIU recorded interviews. The SIU Commander shall consult with the 
Venue Agency Chief/Sheriff prior to committing to any additional costs. 
 
The SIU will not be responsible for handling claims of damage to private property as a result of 
the Officer-Involved Incident or subsequent criminal investigation. Responsibility for handling 
such claims shall fall upon the Venue Agency Chief/Sheriff. 
 
6. DEFINITIONS 
 
A. OFFICER-INVOLVED INCIDENT 

Incidents in which the member of a participating agency is an Involved Officer, or the victim 
of an action, that involves great bodily harm or death. The incident may include but is not 
necessarily limited to: 
(1) Intentional and accidental shootings, including police tactical incidents involving 

specialized response units. 
(2) Intentional and accidental use of any other dangerous or deadly weapon. 
(3) Assaults upon law enforcement officers; assaults on other law enforcement employees 

who are on duty or are acting for a law enforcement purpose. 
(4) Attempts by law enforcement employees to make arrests or to otherwise gain physical 

control for a law enforcement purpose.  
(5) Any fatal injury or great bodily harm received while in police custody, including custodial 

trauma or custodial suicide, but excluding fatal injuries of prisoners which occur while the 
inmate is under a physician’s treatment for a disease or other natural condition which 
has been diagnosed prior to death. 

(6) Vehicular collisions, and specifically: 
a. Including any vehicle fatality which occurs 

i. After, although not necessarily as a result of, police gunfire directed at the 
suspect or the suspect vehicle. 



Special Investigations Unit (SIU) 
Protocol 

[Type text] 
 

ii. In connection with the use of vehicle(s) by police as a “legal intervention” 
technique intended to apprehend a suspect. “Legal intervention” includes vehicle 
ramming, roadblocks, and forcing a vehicle to alter its course by cutting in front of 
it or by contact. 

iii. As a result of a police pursuit. 
b. Excluding any vehicle fatality which involves: 

i. Off-duty non-sworn law enforcement employees who are not, at the time of the 
incident, acting for an actual, apparent, or purported law enforcement purpose. 

ii. Solo vehicular collisions in which the only injury is suffered by a law enforcement 
employee who was the driver and sole occupant of a vehicle which was not 
involved in a collision with any other occupied vehicle. 

 
B. POLICE EMPLOYEE 

This protocol applies to employees and to certain other people affiliated with the 
participating agencies, as follows: 
(1) Full-time, part-time, and hourly sworn and unsworn employees, whether on-duty or off-

duty, who are acting actually, apparently, or purportedly for a law enforcement purpose 
at the time of the incident. 

(2) Reserve law enforcement officers who are on-duty or who are acting actually, 
apparently, or purportedly for a law enforcement purpose at the time of the incident. 

(3) Temporary employees and volunteers, whether paid or unpaid, who are on-duty or who 
are acting actually, apparently, or purportedly for a law enforcement purpose at the time 
of the incident. 

 
C. INVOLVED OFFICER 

(1) The police employee who used lethal force, or potentially lethal force, in connection with 
an incident involving a fatal injury or great bodily harm.  

(2) An officer who operated a motor vehicle while on-duty that was involved in a fatal injury 
and meets the criteria identified in Section 6A(6), “Definitions.” 

 
D. FATAL INJURY 

Death or great bodily harm. 
 
E. GREAT BODILY HARM 

As defined by RCW 9A.04.110(4)(c), great bodily harm means bodily injury which creates a 
probability of death, or which causes significant serious permanent disfigurement, or which 
causes a significant permanent loss or impairment of the function of any bodily part or 
organ. 

 
F. WITNESS OFFICER 

An officer who witnessed the use of force by the Involved Officer, and whose action was not 
a use of lethal force, or potentially lethal force, in connection with an incident involving a 
fatal injury or great bodily harm. 

 
G. VENUE AGENCY 

The Member Agency or Agencies within whose geographical jurisdiction the officer involved 
incident occurs. 

 
When an officer-involved incident occurs in part in two or more jurisdictions, each of those 
jurisdictions is a Venue Agency. 
 



Special Investigations Unit (SIU) 
Protocol 

[Type text] 
 

When an incident occurs on the boundary of two jurisdictions, or at a location where the 
relevant boundary is not readily ascertainable or is in dispute, the Venue Agency should be: 
(1) The Employer Agency if the Involved Officer is employed by either boundary agency, or 
(2) The agency with the greater interest in the case by virtue of having the predominant 

police involvement in the incident or by virtue of having had the majority of acts leading 
up to the fatality occur within its jurisdiction. 

 
For custodial deaths, the agency having custody of the person at the time his/her distress 
was first discovered is a Venue Agency. Also, a Venue Agency is the one within whose 
jurisdiction any fatal action was inflicted. 
 
If the death was caused by conduct which was apparently criminal, the lead Venue Agency 
is the agency within whose geographical jurisdiction the act occurred. If there is apparently 
no criminal conduct involved in the cause of death, the lead Venue Agency is the one having 
custody of the victim when distress was first discovered. 
 
If an Involved Officer is in an incident which occurs within the jurisdiction of another Member 
Agency, and if that officer was acting in the performance of his/her duty at the time of the 
incident, the Venue Agency may elect to relinquish its role in the criminal investigation. 

 
H. VENUE COUNTY 

The county in which the incident occurs. 
 
I. EMPLOYER AGENCY 

The Member Agency that employs the Involved Officer, or employs an officer who is the 
victim of a fatal or grievous bodily injury. In many cases the Venue Agency will also be the 
Employer Agency. 

 
J. MEMBER AGENCIES 

Those agencies that have reviewed and agreed to the terms of the Inter-Local Agreement 
that adopts this Protocol. 
(1) Voting Member Agency: A Member Agency that has a representative assigned to SIU. 

These agencies will be allowed to vote on matters related to SIU (i.e. proposed revisions 
to the SIU Protocol). 

(2) Non-Voting Member Agency: A Member Agency that does not have a representative 
assigned to SIU. These agencies may be allowed to participate in SIU discussions, but 
will not be allowed to vote on matters related to SIU. 

 

7. UNIT MEMBERS 
 
A. UNIT COMMANDER 

The SIU Commander shall be from a Member Agency with the rank of Commander, 
Captain, or Undersheriff, appointed by the Chiefs and Sheriffs. The Unit Commander has 
the overall responsibility to manage and coordinate assigned incidents as well as ensure the 
readiness and training of the Unit. The Unit Commander will serve as liaison between the 
Unit and the Chief/Sheriff of the Venue Agency and Employer Agency. The Unit 
Commander shall determine which SIU Members and other resources will be used to 
investigate each incident. 

  
B. ASSISTANT UNIT COMMANDERS 



Special Investigations Unit (SIU) 
Protocol 

[Type text] 
 

The Assistant SIU Commanders shall be from a Member Agency with the rank of 
Commander, Captain, Undersheriff or Lieutenant, appointed by the Chiefs and Sheriffs.  An 
Assistant Commander assumes the Unit Commander’s duties and responsibilities in the 
absence of the Unit Commander.   The Assistant Unit Commander should not be from the 
same agency as the Unit Commander.  

 
C. ADMINISTRATIVE COMMANDER 

The Administrative Commander shall be from a Member Agency with the rank of 
Commander, Captain, Undersheriff or Lieutenant, appointed by the Chiefs and Sheriffs. The 
responsibilities of the Administrative Commander include: arranging, coordinating, and 
documenting all training for the Unit, maintaining records of Unit call-outs, Unit personnel 
records/roster, Unit equipment inventory, and managing the financial transactions/records of 
the Unit. The Administrative Commander acts as the SIU Commander in the absence of the 
SIU Commander and Assistant Commander. . The Administrative Commander should not 
be from the same agency as the Unit Commander or Assistant Unit Commander. 

 
D. INVESTIGATIVE UNIT SUPERVISORS 

Investigative Unit Supervisors shall be from a Member Agency with a supervisory rank. SIU 
Supervisors will be appointed by the Chiefs and Sheriffs based upon recommendations from 
the Unit Commander. Investigative Unit Supervisors shall be assigned by the Unit 
Commander to respond to and supervise assigned aspects of an officer-involved incident. 
Unit Supervisors shall report directly to the Unit Commander. If an additional supervisor(s) is 
needed, the Unit Commander shall designate an acting supervisor from within SIU. Unit 
Supervisors should not be from the same agency. 

 
E. INVESTIGATORS 

Investigators shall be commissioned officers from a Member Agency, preferably with 
previous experience as a Detective. They shall be appointed by their respective agencies. 
Investigators should work in teams of two or complete specific investigatory tasks at the 
direction of a SIU supervisor.  

 
F. EVIDENCE TECHNICIAN 

The Evidence Technician shall be from a Member Agency. The SIU Evidence Technician 
will help with documenting evidence, collecting evidence, packaging evidence, transporting 
evidence, data collection and other duties assigned.  

 
G. CORONER REPRESENTATIVE 

A coroner representative from each participating county will be assigned to SIU to perform 
the Coroner’s function during the investigation of an SIU incident. The representative from 
the Venue County Coroner’s Office will be activated for incidents involving death to aid in 
the investigation of that particular incident. 

 
H. PROSECUTOR REPRESENTATIVE 

A prosecutor representative from each participating county will be assigned to SIU to serve 
as a legal consultant. The representative from the Venue County will be activated to provide 
legal advice in the investigation of that particular incident. 
 
 
 
 

 



Special Investigations Unit (SIU) 
Protocol 

[Type text] 
 

8. UNIT COMPOSITION 
 
SIU should be comprised of the below-listed members. It may not be necessary to have all 
members activated to respond to an incident. The Unit Commander shall determine which SIU 
resources are needed for each incident.  
 
A. Unit Commander (1) 
B. Assistant Unit Commander (2) 
C. Administrative Commander (1) 
D. Supervisors (4)  
E. Investigators (16)  
F. Evidence Technician (3)  
G. Coroner Representative (3 – one from each participating county) 
H. Prosecutor Representative (3 – one from each participating county) 
 

9. APPOINTMENT/SELECTION OF UNIT MEMBERS 
 
A. APPOINTED MEMBERS 

(1) The Chiefs and Sheriffs shall appoint the SIU Unit Commander, Assistant Unit 
Commander and Administrative Commander. 

(2) The SIU Supervisors shall be appointed by the Chiefs and Sheriff’s based upon 
recommendations from the Unit Commander. 

 
B. SELECTED MEMBERS 

SIU Investigators should be selected though the following process: 
(1) The SIU Commander shall make written notification to the Member Agency’s Sheriffs 

and Police Chiefs soliciting personnel from their respective agencies for assignment to 
SIU. 

(2) The SIU Administrative Commander shall ensure all applicants meet prerequisites. 
(3) Qualified applicants shall be interviewed by a Review Board approved by the SIU 

Commander.  
(4) All applicants shall be interviewed using criteria pertinent for the position of a SIU 

Investigator. The same questions should be asked of each applicant.  
(5) At the conclusion of the Review Board the SIU Commander should consider the 

recommendations of the Board and submit the recommendations to the Chiefs and 
Sheriffs for final selection. 

 
C. PREREQUISITES 

(1) The applicant’s agency must be a Member Agency of SIU. 
(2) The applicant must have the recommendation from their Chief/Sheriff. 
(3) The agency and applicant must be willing to make a commitment of 3 years service to 

SIU (excludes promotion/exigent circumstances) 
(4) The agency and applicant should be willing to make a commitment to 8 hours of training 

each quarter. 
(5) The applicant must be willing to be on call and reasonably available for call-out. 
(6) The applicant shall be a commissioned officer, preferably with previous experience as a 

Detective. 
(7) The applicant should meet the basic training requirements identified in the SIU Protocol. 

 
 
 



Special Investigations Unit (SIU) 
Protocol 

[Type text] 
 

D. PERIODIC APPOINTMENT REVIEW 
The Chiefs/Sheriffs shall review the appointment of their SIU Members who have served 
three years for possible rotation or replacement. 

 

10. CONFIDENTIALITY 
 
Information obtained by SIU investigations will generally be confidential while the investigation is 
pending.  SIU Members shall not voluntarily share confidential information with individuals other 
than SIU Members. The SIU Commander is allowed to share information with the Venue and 
Employer Agencies’ Chief/Sheriff, but no other personnel, to include non-involved Chiefs or 
Sheriffs.  
 
Once the investigation is complete, the investigation file will be subject to requests under the 
Public Records Act. Refer to Section 33, “Release of Information/Public Information Officer.” 
 

11. REMOVAL FROM UNIT 
 
Members can be removed from SIU by their respective Chief/Sheriff in accordance with the 
agency’s policies or practices. 
 

12. UNIT MEMBERS FROM AN EMPLOYER AGENCY 
 
To maintain proper objectivity, any SIU member from an Employer Agency should not 
participate in the investigation of that particular incident. An exception may apply to the 
Washington State Patrol, which includes the Washington State Patrol Crime Labs and Crime 
Scene Response Team, since they are a statewide agency.   
 

13. TRAINING 
 
SIU members should have received the basic training identified below prior to appointment with 
SIU. Some courses may be waived based upon the member’s experience and/or on-the-job 
training, as determined by the SIU Commander. The advanced training, taken before and/or 
during their SIU appointment, is desirable and Member Agencies should make reasonable effort 
to provide this training. 
 
A. BASIC TRAINING 

(1) Basic Homicide Investigation 
(2) Crime Scene Investigation 
(3) Interviewing and Interrogation 
(4) Crime Scene Photography (which may include Videography) 

 
B. ADVANCED TRAINING 

(1) Advanced Homicide Investigation 
(2) Advanced Interviewing and Interrogation 
(3) Officer-Involved Shooting Investigation  
(4) Blood Spatter 
(5) Crime Scene Laboratory Services 
(6) DNA 
(7) In-Custody Death Investigation (which may include Excited Delirium and Positional 

Asphyxia) 



Special Investigations Unit (SIU) 
Protocol 

[Type text] 
 

(8) Other related training, seminars, and conferences or on-going training as offered by 
WSCJTC or other training venues on an as available basis. 

 
C. IN-SERVICE TRAINING 

The SIU shall strive to maintain a unit of highly skilled and trained investigators. SIU should 
train together as a unit at least twice annually. Quarterly training should be allowed based 
upon need. 

 

14. SIU RECORDS 
 
Records shall be maintained by the SIU Administrative Commander of all Unit activity including: 
A. Selection Process 
B. Personnel History 
C. Call-out activity 
D. Unit and individual training  

 
15. REQUESTING SIU ASSISTANCE 
 
Departments are under no obligation to request the assistance of SIU. The Venue Agency may 
choose to investigate the incident without SIU assistance. Each department should establish 
their own guidelines as to when and if they will request assistance from SIU.  
 
The Protocol identified in this document becomes effective upon the activation of SIU.  
 
Member Agencies may request SIU activation upon the occurrence of any sensitive or critical 
event involving a law enforcement employee which may have possible criminal liability attached. 
Upon this unilateral invocation, the matter will be investigated under the provisions of this 
Protocol. Such incidents may include: 
A. A fatality which is not covered by this protocol and guideline. 
B. An officer-involved incident where the injuries are not fatal. 
C. Any other sensitive or critical event involving a law enforcement employee where criminal 

conduct is a possibility to be investigated. 
 
While formed primarily to investigate officer-involved incidents, SIU may be requested for non-
officer involved incidents. 
 
16. ACTIVATION 
 
A. A Chief of Police/Sheriff, or their designee, should make the request for SIU through their 

respective communications center. 
B. The communications center shall contact the SIU Commander or an SIU Assistant 

Commander if the Commander is not available per SIU call-out instructions. 
C. The SIU Commander should call the Venue Agency supervisor at the scene to obtain all 

available information. 
D. The SIU Commander shall determine what and how many SIU resources are needed. Not 

all incidents may require activation of the entire SIU. 
E. Call-out instructions for the SIU shall be provided to communication centers by the SIU 

Commander. 
 
 



Special Investigations Unit (SIU) 
Protocol 

[Type text] 
 

 

17. AUTHORITY 
 
Once the agreement has been made for SIU to investigate an incident, as requested by the 
Venue Agency representative, the SIU Commander shall have sole and exclusive authority 
concerning the criminal investigation of the incident.  
 
Washington State Patrol policy directs that the WSP will investigate use of lethal force by its 
personnel, and that the WSP will not attempt to prevent a concurrent investigation by other 
agencies with jurisdiction. The SIU and WSP should work jointly to criminally investigate the 
incident if the Involved Officer is a WSP trooper. 
 

18. VENUE AGENCY RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
A. The Venue Agency shall be a Member Agency in order for the SIU to be activated. 
B. Venue Agency first responders should ensure that emergency life saving measures are 

taken.  
C. The on-scene Venue Agency supervisor may attempt to obtain critical information pertinent 

to the safety of officers and citizens. Refer to Section 19, “Obtaining Critical Information.” 
D. The Venue Agency should ensure proper crime scene protection. This includes, but is not 

limited to, immediately securing the crime scene, controlling access into the crime scene, 
and recording the names of individuals who have entered the crime scene. Written reports 
are expected from those who enter a designated crime scene. 

E. The Venue Agency should identify, and take reasonable steps to protect, perishable 
evidence at the scene. 

F. The Venue Agency should attempt to identify witnesses who are present at the scene. 
Potential witnesses (including Witness Officers) should be sequestered as soon as 
reasonably possible. Witness Officers should be directed by their Employer Agency 
supervisor or commander to not discuss details of the case with the Involved Officer or other 
Witness Officers until SIU has completed their interviews with those officers. 

G. If, prior to the arrival of SIU personnel, a person is transported to a hospital with life-
threatening or fatal injuries, the Venue Agency should provide an officer to accompany that 
person in order to: 
(1) Locate, preserve, safeguard and maintain the chain of custody for physical evidence. 
(2) Obtain a dying declaration, spontaneous statement, and/or statement of then-existing, or 

previous, mental or physical state. 
(3) Maintain custody of the person if he/she has been arrested. 
(4) Provide information to medical personnel about the incident that is relevant to treatment, 

and obtain information from medical personnel relevant to the criminal investigation. 
(5) Identify relevant people, including witnesses and medical personnel. 

H. If a law enforcement officer has been injured and transported to a hospital, the agency in 
whose jurisdiction the hospital is located should provide appropriate security and assistance. 
The Employer Agency should be responsible for providing necessary assistance to the 
officer’s family at the hospital. 

I. The Venue Agency representative should make the initial request for the SIU. 
J. The Venue Agency should provide a Supervisor or Incident Commander who is available at 

the scene. That person should update SIU personnel upon their arrival at the scene. 
K. The Venue Agency should make department personnel available to the SIU. 
L. For incidents in which a suspect is taken into custody, the Venue Agency will coordinate 

appropriate security measures with the SIU Commander and bear the costs of security until 



Special Investigations Unit (SIU) 
Protocol 

[Type text] 
 

the suspect is available for booking. It is understood that special circumstances may dictate 
that another Non-Venue Agency may provide assistance and security upon request of the 
Venue Agency’s Chief/Sheriff.  

M. The Venue Agency should turn over to SIU in a timely manner all evidence that is in their 
possession.  

N. The Venue Agency should make all documents, reports, and information on the incident 
available to the SIU in a timely manner. 

O. The Venue Agency should allow use of space and equipment as needed by the SIU. 
 

19. OBTAINING CRITICAL INFORMATION 
 
The Involved Officer may have information that is pertinent to the safety of officers and citizens, 
as well as the proper preservation of the crime scene. Such information may include, but not be 
limited to; medical aid that is needed, information necessary to apprehend suspect(s), and 
identification of perishable evidence. For purposes of this protocol, the reasons or basis for the 
use of force by an Involved Officer, or details of that use of force, is not considered critical 
information. 
 
The Venue Agency on-scene supervisor may, based upon that agency’s training, policy or 
guidelines, attempt to obtain critical information from the Involved Officer that is reasonably 
necessary to aid injured persons, apprehend suspect(s) and protect perishable evidence 
 
All Member Agency supervisors and commanders should be familiar with Garrity v. New Jersey 
and the consequences to a criminal investigation of directing or ordering an employee to answer 
questions.  
A. The SIU investigation shall not consider or use any compelled information provided by an 

Involved Officer who was directed or ordered to provide such information.  
B. Any supervisor or other agency member who has directed or ordered an employee to 

answer questions shall immediately report that fact to the first-arriving SIU investigator and 
the SIU Commander upon his/her arrival at the scene. 
(1) Details of the compelled information learned from the employee shall not be provided to 

SIU personnel.  
C. The SIU Commander shall attempt contact with the Involved Officer to inquire if he/she was 

directed or ordered to answer any questions. 
(1) Details of the compelled information shall not be obtained. 
(2) The SIU Commander shall ensure that no compelled information is used as part of the 

SIU investigation unless authorized by the Venue Agency prosecutor. 
 

20. TURNING OVER CONTROL OF THE CRIME SCENE TO SIU 
 
The Venue Agency Supervisor or Incident Commander shall turn over control of the crime 
scene to the SIU Commander upon his/her arrival. SIU then becomes responsible for the crime 
scene and initiation of the criminal investigation. The Venue Agency shall maintain perimeter 
control of the crime scene if requested by the SIU Commander.  
 
A criminal act or investigation (i.e. robbery, burglary, search or arrest warrant service) may have 
preceded the Officer-Involved Incident. If so, the SIU Commander shall consult with the Venue 
Agency Incident Commander to determine which agency should investigate that preceding 
event, to include pursuing criminal charges related to that event. If so requested, SIU shall 
assume responsibility for the criminal investigation of the preceding event. Otherwise, SIU will 
limit its criminal investigation to the Officer-Involved Incident. 



Special Investigations Unit (SIU) 
Protocol 

[Type text] 
 

 

21. SIU GUIDELINES 
 
The SIU is comprised of personnel from multiple agencies, whose specific investigative roles 
may change from case to case. The SIU recognizes it is important to maintain consistency in 
the quality and type of investigation that is performed. Therefore, the SIU Commander will 
devise guidelines to be used during SIU investigations. SIU members will follow the guidelines 
as a part of their investigation. 
 

22. SEIZING AN OFFICER’S WEAPON 
 
If, upon arrival of SIU personnel, an Involved Officer is still in possession of a firearm or other 
weapon that was used in the incident, the SIU Commander will coordinate obtaining that firearm 
or weapon with the Employer Agency Supervisor or Incident Commander.  
 
The SIU Commander shall ensure an inspection is conducted of all Witness Officer’s (or other 
officers who may have been present at the time that force was applied) firearms, ammunition or 
other weapons. These inspections will be coordinated through that officer’s Employer Agency 
Supervisor or Incident Commander. 
 

23. RECOGNIZING POTENTIAL TRAUMA 
 
The duties and responsibilities of a law enforcement officer may place an officer in a position in 
which he/she may justifiably need to use deadly force, or result in an officer being the victim of a 
crime.  
 
It is recognized the Involved Officer or Witness Officer may encounter psychological trauma 
from an incident that is a result of them fulfilling their duties and responsibilities. SIU personnel 
will be alert for signs that indicate an officer may be suffering from such trauma. SIU personnel 
will treat involved officers with sensitivity and awareness as to the potential of acute stress 
reaction and/or other psychological trauma. 
 

24. REMOVING OFFICERS FROM THE SCENE 
 
If, upon arrival of SIU personnel, an Involved Officer or Witness Officer is still present at the 
scene, the SIU Commander will coordinate with the Venue and Employer Agency Supervisor or 
Incident Commander the removal of those officers from the scene.  
 
To assure witness credibility these officers should, whether they are removed from the scene 
prior to or after SIU arrival, be kept separated from each other until statements are obtained by 
SIU. Witness Officers should be directed by their Employer Agency supervisor or commander to 
not discuss details of the case with the Involved Officer or other Witness Officers until SIU has 
completed their interviews with those officers. 
 

25. PEER SUPPORT GROUP COUNSELORS 
 
It is recognized that the Employer Agency may have guidelines in place that allow Peer Support 
Group Counselors who are not involved in the incident to have access to the Involved or 
Witness Officers. These discussions are considered privileged communications pursuant to 



Special Investigations Unit (SIU) 
Protocol 

[Type text] 
 

RCW 5.60.060. SIU will allow Peer Support Group Counselor involvement per the Employer 
Agency’s policy or guideline. 
 

26. DOCUMENTING THE INVOLVED OFFICER’S CONDITION 
 
SIU Members should photograph and document any injuries the Involved Officer, or any other 
officer, may have received. The Involved Officer’s clothing will also be photographed and 
documented. The clothing may be seized as evidence. 
 

27. INTERVIEWING LAW ENFORCEMENT EMPLOYEES 
 
It is recognized that officers who justifiably use deadly force as a part of their duties and 
responsibilities may be subject to civil litigation. It is acknowledged that the SIU criminal 
investigation interview with Involved Officer(s) and Witness Officer(s) may be used by the 
Employer Agency in the administrative investigation and/or review of the incident to determine if 
any policy violations may have occurred. However, Employer Agency personnel conducting an 
administrative investigation and/or review should not be involved in an SIU investigation, nor will 
they normally  engage in SIU interviews with Involved or Witness Officers. An allowable 
exception may be if the Involved Officer or Witness Officers agree to provide a single voluntary 
(non-compelled Garrity) statement, and requests that Employer Agency personnel conducting 
an administrative investigation and/or review be allowed to observe the SIU criminal 
investigation interview. 
 
SIU recognizes that each agency’s collective bargaining agreements (CBA) may establish 
guidelines for interviewing the Involved Officer and Witness Officers. SIU members will 
familiarize themselves with the Employer Agency’s CBA as it pertains to this topic. 
 
Any interview with the Involved Officer or Witness Officer will be scheduled by the SIU 
Commander through the Employer Agency’s Chief/Sheriff or his/her designee.  
 
With the officer’s consent, formal interviews by SIU Members with the Involved Officer and 
Witness Officer(s) will be tape digitally recorded and transcribed. 
 
A.  Interview with the Involved Officer. 
 

(1) Unless the Involved Officer is a suspect involving possible criminal charges, the 
interview with the officer should be treated as a witness interview balancing the need to 
obtain all necessary information with sensitivity for the circumstances of the necessity of 
the interview. This approach is to be consistent with similar interviews with non-law 
enforcement officers. An example would be interviewing the parents of a deceased child 
when there is no probable cause to believe that a parent has committed a crime. 

 
(2) Research indicates an Involved Officer’s memory often will be helped by revisiting the 

crime scene and doing a walk through after evidence and evidence markers have been 
removed, and before the officer has been interviewed. It is recognized this process can 
be instrumental in separating a true picture of the event from perceptually distorted 
recollections, and that the officer may recognize things in the scene that will stimulate 
recall. Consequently, if requested by the Involved Officer, SIU will generally allow the 
officer, with only his/her legal counsel, to do a walk-through of the scene prior to a formal 
interview. The legal right to do a walk-through after investigators have left the scene (i.e. 



Special Investigations Unit (SIU) 
Protocol 

[Type text] 
 

public property crime scene versus private property crime scene) will need to be 
considered. The same approach is often used in homicide cases involving witnesses or 
suspects who are not law enforcement officers.  

 
(3) It is recognized the interview may take place as soon as practical  after the incident 

occurred.  
 
(4) The Involved Officer should be allowed to provide a written statement prior to the 

interview if they so desire.  
 
(5) The Involved Officer will be treated with sensitivity and awareness as to the potential of 

acute stress reaction and/or other psychological trauma. 
 
(6) The Involved Officer has the same constitutional rights as any other citizen. The officer 

has the right to have legal counsel present during the interview. The officer should be 
provided a reasonable time to consult with legal counsel prior to the formal interview. 

 
(7) If the Involved Officer requests a Guild Representative (other than an attorney) be 

present during the interview, the SIU Interviewer(s) will notify the SIU Commander. The 
Commander will then consult with the Venue County’s prosecutor and the Employer 
Agency Chief/Sheriff. A decision will then be made as to whether a Guild representative 
can be present during the interview. If a Guild Representative is allowed to sit in on the 
interview, the Representative will not be allowed to interfere with or obstruct the 
interview process. 

 
(8) As determined by legal standards, the Miranda Rights are generally required only when 

a criminal suspect is in custody and is subjected to interrogation. Consequently, an 
Involved Officer should only be advised of Miranda at the beginning of an SIU interview if 
it meets this standard.  
 
SIU Investigators shall consult with the Venue Agency prosecutor concerning possible 
advisement of Miranda prior to a formal interview with the Involved Officer. There may 
be case specific circumstances which may prompt the Venue County prosecutor to 
request an Involved Officer be advised of Miranda prior to the SIU interview. If such a 
request is made, SIU Investigators shall advise the Involved Officer of Miranda at the 
beginning of the interview. 
 

(9) Prior to the beginning of an interview, the Involved Officer will be advised that they are 
being questioned related to a criminal investigation and that they are free to leave. 
 

(10) SIU Members will obtain statements from the Involved Officer only if it is “free and 
voluntary.” If an Involved Officer indicates he/she will not provide a statement unless 
compelled to do so, the interview will be stopped. SIU Interviewer(s) shall notify the SIU 
Commander, who will notify the Venue County prosecutor’s office and the Employer 
Agency Chief/Sheriff. 

 
(11) Should an Involved Officer elect to not provide a voluntary, non-compelled statement to 

SIU Investigators, the Venue County prosecutor may:  

 Request a Coroner’s Inquest be convened pursuant to RCW 36.24.020 to aid in 
determining facts of the case and the cause of death, or 

 Request a Special Inquiry be convened pursuant to RCW 10.27.170. 



Special Investigations Unit (SIU) 
Protocol 

[Type text] 
 

 
B. Interview with a Witness Officer. 
 

(1) Interviews with Witness Officer(s) will likely need to be arranged on the same day that 
the incident occurred. Witness Officers will be interviewed separately.  

 
(2) Unit Members should be alert for signs the Witness Officer(s) are traumatized and may 

need some time to decompress prior to giving a statement. 
 
(3) Generally, an officer who is a witness to the use of force and is not involved in the 

application of force in any manner and not a subject of the investigation, does not have a 
right to union representation during his/her interview. That is unless the Witness Officer  
reasonably believes his/her statement may result in discipline. Under such 
circumstances, if the officer requests Guild representation, he/she may be allowed to 
have a Guild Representative present during the interview.  The Representative will not 
be allowed to interfere with or obstruct the interview process. 

 
 (4) Witness Officer(s) may, if appropriate, be asked to participate in a walk-through of the  
  scene with SIU investigators. 
 

28. INTOXICANT TESTING 
 
Law enforcement employees have the same rights and privileges that any civilian would have 
regarding intoxicant testing. If SIU Members determine a law enforcement employee’s state of 
sobriety is relevant to the criminal investigation, they may: 
A. Obtain the blood and/or urine sample by valid consent. 
B. Apply for a search warrant to obtain the samples.  
C. When applicable, utilize the provisions of the Motor Vehicle Code of state statutes for 

vehicle driving incidents. 
 

29. RELIEVING INVOLVED OFFICERS OF DUTY 
 
SIU will not be involved in relieving any Involved Officer or Witness Officer of their duties. Any 
such action will be the responsibility of the Employer Agency. 
 

30. PLANNED POLICE ACTION 
 
If the Officer-Involved Incident is a result of a planned police action (i.e. search warrant service, 
arrest warrant service, tactical operation), documents and materials associated with the 
planning and execution of that action shall be turned over to SIU. Personnel involved in the 
action shall be interviewed by SIU. Those personnel should not debrief the incident amongst 
themselves until the last SIU interview is conducted with those involved. 
 

31. AUTOPSY 
 
Autopsies will be coordinated with the SIU Coroner Representative and will be conducted 
through the Venue County Coroner’s office. A SIU Member will be present during autopsy and 
take all appropriate investigative steps. 
 
 



Special Investigations Unit (SIU) 
Protocol 

[Type text] 
 

 

32. KEEPING THE VENUE/EMPLOYER AGENCY INFORMED 
 
The SIU Commander should ensure the Venue Agency and Employer Agency’s Chief/Sheriff is 
kept informed of the progress of the criminal investigation.  
 

33. RELEASE OF INFORMATION / PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICER 
 
The SIU Commander, the Venue Agency and Employer Agency Chief/Sheriff should identify a 
single Public Information Officer for release of information to the public. Release of detailed 
information pertaining to the criminal investigation requires notification to the SIU Commander. 
Under no circumstances should information be released that may compromise a SIU 
investigation, unless required by law.  
 
Requests for Release of Public Records of SIU investigative reports preferably would be made 
through the Venue Agency. However, individual agencies represented on the Unit will be 
required to follow applicable statutes for reports of their Unit members should a request for 
public records be filed with that agency. Release of any reports or records will follow the policy 
or guideline of the respective agencies. The SIU Commander will be notified by the Venue 
Agency, Employer Agency or any Unit Members that receive a records request related to the 
incident while the investigation in pending.  
 

34. RELEASE OF THE CRIME SCENE 
 
Only the SIU Commander, in consultation with and approval from the Venue Agency 
Prosecutor, may authorize release of the crime scene upon completion of the criminal 
investigation. The SIU Commander shall notify the Employer and Venue Agency Chief/Sheriff of 
the intent to release the scene prior to it actually being released.  
 

35. REFERRAL TO THE COUNTY PROSECUTOR 
 
In coordination with the SIU Prosecutor Representative, the SIU Commander will present the 
SIU investigative file to the Venue County Prosecutor for consideration of a Coroner’s Inquest, 
referral to the Department of Justice, and review of filing on any potential criminal charges.  
 
The Prosecutor shall also be available for consultation on search warrants, special inquiry 
proceedings, special inquiry subpoenas, and issues regarding statements by law enforcement 
officers when Garrity or other issues are raised. 
 

36. EVIDENCE STORAGE 
 
All evidence should be stored under the control of, and at the evidence storage facility of, a 
Non-Employer Member Agency designated by the SIU Commander. The SIU Commander shall 
coordinate with that Member Agency’s Chief/Sheriff. The SIU Evidence Technician shall work 
with that Member Agency’s Evidence Technician on details of inventorying and storage of 
evidence items. 
 
The Venue Agency shall be responsible for storage and handling costs of extraordinary items 
such as vehicles, HAZMAT, etc.  
 



Special Investigations Unit (SIU) 
Protocol 

[Type text] 
 

 

37. CASE FILES 
 
All original reports, statements, and other documentation of Venue Agency employees should 
be filed and maintained by the Venue Agency. Copies of those reports, statements, and other 
documentation shall be submitted to the SIU Commander in a timely manner.  
 
SIU will file reports under the assigned Venue Agency case number. The Venue Agency face 
sheet and original report will be completed by a Venue Agency officer, other than the Involved 
Officer. It is recognized the original report may be brief, and will be supplemented by detailed 
SIU reports.  
 
Justifiable homicides often occur in conjunction with other criminal offenses. The National 
Incident Based Reporting System (NIBRS) data collection guidelines identify the justifiable 
homicide must be reported as a separate incident from the other criminal offense. For the 
justifiable homicide case, NIBRS requires that the Involved Officer be listed as a “suspect,” and 
the perpetrator who is killed be listed as a “victim.” Other officers or civilians should be listed as 
“witness” or “involved other.” 
 
SIU members shall file their reports on a standard supplemental report template, different than 
the I-Leads electronic report system. Those reports shall be printed and submitted to the SIU 
Commander upon completion. The SIU Commander will establish a master page number for 
each page of the report. The SIU Commander shall be responsible for ensuring all people listed 
on SIU reports are entered into the I-Leads database, and the completed report is scanned in 
and electronically attached to the Venue Agency report. Reading access capabilities to the 
electronic version of the report will be restricted and locked until the criminal investigation and 
administrative review is completed. It shall be unrestricted only with authorization from the 
Venue Agency Chief/Sheriff. The procedure in Section 33, “Release of Information,” will be 
followed for requests for release of public records. 
 
SIU reports will be completed in a timely manner. The SIU Commander and Venue Agency 
Chief/Sheriff will coordinate where the original SIU investigative file will be stored. Upon 
completion of the investigation and after the case has been referred to the Venue County 
prosecutor’s office, copies of the SIU investigative file should be made available to the 
Venue/Employer Agency Chief/Sheriff with the approval of the Venue County Prosecutor. 
 
 

38. INCIDENT DEBRIEFING 
 
An incident debriefing for SIU members will be conducted as soon as practical after each 
activation. The debriefing will be scheduled and conducted by the SIU Commander. 



Special Investigations Unit (SIU) 
Protocol 

[Type text] 
 

 

39. ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 
 
 

 Chiefs/ 
Sheriffs 

SIU Unit 
Commander 

Asst. Unit 
Commanders 

Administrative 
Commander 

Prosecutor 
Representative 

Advisor

Coroner 
Representative 

Unit 
Supervisor 

Unit 
Supervisor 

Unit 
Supervisor 

Investigators 

Evidence 
Technicians 



WEH
Text Box
k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 123







WEH
Text Box
l. Termination of Amended & Restated Debt Participation Agreement for Jail & District Court Expansion of 2001









 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 8-2-16        
Subject: RFP Process 

Round 3 approval 
Prepared by:       D. Waggoner  
Reviewed by:       

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  __X___  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  __X___  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda           _____  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY 
 
On May 10, 2016, with Resolution 2016-390, the BOCC approved the advertisement of a Request for 
Proposal for the selection of a contractor for the Security System Retrofit Project.  This RFP included three 
stages and Stage One and Stage Two have been accomplished.  The Facilities Manager and the Selection 
Team seek permission to proceed to Round Three.  This round will disperse technical documents and 
request a detailed proposal from each of the top three contractors. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the continuation of the RFP process with Round Three. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
 
MOTION 
Move to authorize Round Three of the Request for Proposal selection process. 
  
 

WEH
Text Box
Electronic Security Retrofit – RFP Update ~ D Waggoner



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Aug. 2nd 2016     
    

Subject:               Fairgrounds 
Prepared by:       Fred Bowen 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  _____ 

Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  __X__ 
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            _____  
Public Hearing            _____ 
1st Discussion            __X__ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
May 17th, 2016 the Board approved the development of construction plans and specifications for the renovation of 
Buildings 2 and 3 at the Fairgrounds. 

 

SUMMARY 
 
The grass area between the two buildings is scheduled to become an open concrete plaza. New storefront entry doors 
will be installed in the sides of each building from the plaza area as the main entries.   
 
As plan development proceeded it was suggested that a timber line roof structure matching the décor of the existing 
buildings be place over the plaza area creating a central entry point and provide cover from adverse weather conditions 
as the public enters the buildings.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
I’m asking the Boards approval to add the timber line roof structure over the plaza area between the two buildings 
creating a central entry point for entering the buildings.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Total estimated cost $200,000 

 

MOTION 
 
Move to approve the Public Services Administrator to proceed with the addition of the timber line roof structure over the 
plaza area between buildings 2&3 at the Fairgrounds.  

 

WEH
Text Box
Fairgrounds Building 2 & 3 Plaza ~ F Bowen


	CA - Commissioners a.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	Timed - 1 RFP Update.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY

	Timed - 2 Plaza Area between  Bldg 's 23.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	SUMMARY
	MOTION




